
1

EAST AMWELL PLANNING BOARD MINUTES
7:30 PM East Amwell Municipal Building

March 13, 2013 - Meeting

Call to Order, Attendance and Pledge of Allegiance
This meeting of the East Amwell Planning Board was opened on March 13, 2013 at 7:30 PM. The
following notice was read, “In compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act, this is a regularly
scheduled meeting pursuant to the annual meeting notice as published in the January 17, 2013 issue of the
Hunterdon County Democrat, a copy of the agenda for this meeting was forwarded to the Hunterdon
County Democrat, filed in the Township Clerk’s Office and posted on the bulletin board on March 6,
2013.”

Present: Roger DeLay
Fred Gardner
Rob Gilbert
Gail Glashoff
Don Reilly, Chairman
Dart Sageser
David Wang-Iverson
Linda Lenox – Alt. #1
Attorney Norman – (arrived at 7:52 PM)
Planner Slagle

Excused: Gail Skupien – Alt. #2
Joe Wolfgang

Citizens’ Privilege to Speak on Items not on the Agenda
Chairman Reilly opened the floor to public comment. Seeing no one come forward, a motion was made
by Rob Gilbert and seconded by Fred Gardner to close to the public.

Review of Minutes
A motion by Fred Gardner, seconded by Gail Glashoff to approve the Board’s 2/13/13 minutes with no
revisions noted was approved with Ms. Lenox abstaining.

Chairman Reilly noted that Attorney Norman is stuck in traffic due to an accident on Route 31 and
suggested the Board move forward with the other items on the agenda until he arrives and then the Board
can address the public hearing for the Lang subdivision.

New Business – Other
Discussion – Master Plan Re-examination: Status Update
Chairman Reilly commented that the subcommittee met just prior to tonight’s meeting and indicated they
reviewed the Planning Board’s 2003 Re-exam. The goals were discussed as well as the issues contained
in the 2003 report. The subcommittee discussed what additional items they wished to add to this year’s
Re-exam as well as what items should be omitted from the 2003 document. It was noted that Planner
Slagle will prepare a draft report for the subcommittee to review next month. Chairman Reilly stated that
the subcommittee intends to try and meet at 6:30 PM, just prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Board
meetings, each month.



2

East Amwell Township Planning Board Minutes – 3/13/13

Oral Reports
FOSPC – Mr. Gardner reported that he was not at the last FOSPC meeting but reminded everyone that the
Greenfest will be this Saturday at the Municipal Building from 9:30 AM – 12:00 PM for anyone
interested in attending.
Agricultural Advisory Committee – Ms. Glashoff reported that the Committee discussed establishing a
mission statement and they forwarded a list to the Township Committee for the consideration of such
things as, “A standing agenda item, request for inclusion and review process similar to the Environmental
Commission and the Historic Preservation, to work with the Assessor as a resource when there is a
problem with a farm assessed property and that plans are provided to the Committee not only to review
but to allow for closer communication and input to FOSPC when preserving properties.” Ms. Glashoff
asked Mr. Sageser if this matter was included on the Township Committee’s agenda for tomorrow night’s
meeting. Mr. Sageser indicated that he wasn’t sure and remarked that the Committee’s agendas are
streamlined until the budget process is completed. Ms. Glashoff also noted the Greenfest this Saturday.
Environmental Commission – Mr. Sageser noted the Greenfest this weekend as well.
Wastewater Management – No report was given.
PB Secretary – No report was given.
Chairman – No report was given.

Presentation of Vouchers
A motion by Gail Glashoff, seconded by Rob Gilbert to approve the vouchers for payment as listed on the
agenda was unanimously approved.

It was noted for the record that Attorney Norman was still not in attendance. Chairman Reilly suggested
the Board take a 15 minute adjournment. Attorney Gruenberg agreed to the brief recess on behalf of his
client Steve Lang. A motion by Gail Glashoff, seconded by Linda Lenox to adjourn the meeting for 15
minutes was unanimously approved.

A motion by Gail Glashoff, seconded by Fred Gardner to return to open session was unanimously
approved.

The Board was in a brief recess from 7:43 PM – 7:52 PM.

It was noted for the record that Attorney Norman had arrived at the meeting at this time, 7:52 PM and
apologized for the delay.

Public Hearing – Steve Lang: Preliminary Major Subdivision Approval Block 8 Lot 10: 1127 Old
York Road, Ringoes NJ 08551 – (Continued from the 12/12/12 meeting)
Chairman Reilly noted that because there were several potential conditions of approval being noted at the
initial public hearing the applicant had decided to table the application and revise their plans accordingly
to try and eliminate some of the suggested conditions of approval. Attorney Norman noted that the public
hearing was re-noticed in accordance with the MLUL requirements.

Chairman Reilly noted that the initial testimony (from the December meeting) was part of the record and
stated the applicant can add additional testimony this evening and then the Board can go back and discuss
any open issues. Planning Board Administrative Officer Andrews noted for the record that Planning
Board Member David Wang-Iverson had listened to the digital recording of the meeting on 12/12/12 and
is eligible to vote on the application this evening.



3

East Amwell Township Planning Board Minutes – 3/13/13

Attorney Norman suggested the applicant pick up where the December 2012 meeting left off by
describing what the issues were, how the plans were revised to address those issues and provide a brief
recap of the project.

Attorney Gruenberg came forward on behalf of the applicant Steve Lang. He explained that the plans
have been revised to move the exception area on the lot with the proposed residence to the open lands lot
that will be used for agricultural purposes. He noted this will move the residence slightly out of the way
and preserve more agricultural land. He also stated that additional details have been provided per
Engineer O’Neal’s request as outlined in his prior review memos.

Attorney Gruenberg indicated that they have also met with the Amwell Valley Fire Chief to discuss the
access to the proposed lots.

Planner Eric Rupnarain came forward. Attorney Norman noted that he was still under oath and could
continue to provide testimony. Planner Rupnarain referred to sheet #5 of the site plans and explained that
the two acre exception area is now located adjacent to where the other three proposed homes will be
constructed. He stated that in addition to the exception area they have done soil testing for an on-site
septic system for both the primary and reserve septic areas for which they have received acceptable soil
results. Attorney Goldberg noted that the Board had expressed concern over this at the December meeting
because the original location of the proposed house was located more toward the center of the lot which
would have interfered with agricultural activities. Planner Rupnarain noted that with the revised
configuration the bulk of the agricultural parcel remains open with no septic lines preventing farming
activity.

Planner Rupnarain noted he met with Fire Chief Jesse Williams per the Board’s request and he stated that
Chief Williams was generally happy with the location of the water tank because it can serve not only the
proposed homes in the subdivision but some of the existing homes along Boss Road as well. Planner
Rupnarain remarked that there were some requested changes to the plans which included: (1) A pull off
area adjacent to the driveway of at least 30’ wide and 75’ long so they can park their equipment along the
fire tank and allow other emergency vehicles to pass by. (2) A turn around area at the end of the common
driveway. He explained that the two driveways which will serve proposed lots 10.09 and 10.10 will have
wider entrances in order to accommodate the turn around area.

Attorney Gruenberg noted that members of the public are apparently concerned about drainage on the
property and had suggested a berm be placed along the property line. Planner Rupnarain referred to sheet
#6 of the plans and explained that runoff from the cemetery flows in an easterly direction across lot 10.02
and lot 10.05 and then drains into the stream that’s located on the applicant (Steve Lang’s) property. He
noted that placing a berm along the southerly property line would not serve any purpose. He stated all of
the runoff from the Lang property and the proposed areas of development is contained on the parcel. He
indicated that some of the drainage problems the adjoining property owners claim to be having will be
alleviated by redirecting some of the runoff that comes from the parcel located uphill. He confirmed again
that no runoff from the subject site drains on the adjoining lot 10.02 or lot 10.05. He further explained
that part of the runoff from the cemetery actually drains onto the subject site and if a berm was to be built
along the property line it would trap water between the berm and the common line with lots 10.02 and
10.05. Engineer O’Neal indicated that he agreed with this statement.



4

East Amwell Township Planning Board Minutes – 3/13/13

Attorney Gruenberg further clarified that the proposed detention basin with a drainage easement has an
underground pipe that discharges into the existing area that is at an elevation level approximately 8 feet
lower than the adjoining property owners dwelling. Planner Rupnarain testified that with regard to runoff,
the topography in this area is such that the proposed development on the subject site will not impact the
adjoining properties.

Attorney Gruenberg referred to Engineer O’Neal’s review report dated 3/4/13 and commented that they
will comply with all of the items outlined except for obtaining a new Letter of Interpretation (LOI) from
the NJDEP because they believe they are protected by the Permit Extension Act and do not need to obtain
an updated LOI. Engineer O’Neal clarified that he agrees an updated LOI is not needed but believed there
was some confusion over whether or not two LOI’s had been issued. He noted he would work this out
with Planner Rupnarain.

There was some discussion on the formation of a Homeowners Association for this subdivision. Attorney
Gruenberg will provide Attorney Norman with the documentation along with the developer’s agreement
at the proper time and agreed to this being a condition of approval.

Attorney Gruenberg summarized that they are seeking Preliminary Major Subdivision Approval along
with a planning variance and design waiver. The planning variance is a statutory provision which
essentially requires a building permit to be issued for a lot that fronts a public street. Attorney Gruenberg
noted this cannot be done under the current proposal. He indicated they had originally complied with this
requirement when they submitted a cul-de-sac configuration with a road which the Board later suggested
be reconfigured to a common driveway.

Planner Slagle asked for clarification regarding trees being planted in the area of the detention basin.
Engineer O’Neal commented that upon reviewing the landscaping plan it was difficult to determine
whether the proposed trees were being planted on the bermed area. He stated that he recommends against
this because in a storm the trees can blow down and tear a whole in the berm which would create a
problem. Attorney Gruenberg agreed and indicated they will provide a revised landscape plan to the
Board’s professionals for their review to confirm that nothing will be planted on the berm.

A motion by Gail Glashoff, seconded by Rob Gilbert to open to the public was unanimously approved.

Dan Gartling of 15 Boss Road (lot 10.05) came forward and asked for clarification that there will be a
berm around the detention basin because he is very concerned about the drainage and potential flooding.
Planner Rupnarain confirmed that there will be a berm around the detention basin.

Christian Plunkett of 17 Boss Road (lot 10.02) came forward and commented that he would like the
opportunity to retain his own hydrogeologist to review the plans because he is still concerned about the
drainage. Mr. Plunkett commented that even though the elevations on the site plan indicate otherwise, the
property appears to go uphill before it levels out. He stated that he wanted another Engineer to be able to
review the plans and provide a second opinion. Mr. DeLay remarked that he understands the topography
appears to go uphill because looking at the contour line running right through Mr. Plunkett’s property it is
at elevation 220’ and at the edge of the cemetery it is at elevation 230’ and a third of the way up into the
cemetery it is at elevation 240’ so there is an approximate rise of 30’ from Mr. Plunkett’s property to the
cemetery. Mr. DeLay noted that when you look at those same elevation lines on the Lang property, the
one at 230’ crosses behind the proposed dwelling on lot 10.06 and is at an elevation of 200’. Mr. Plunkett
asked if there will be any grade changes that will alter the existing contours. Engineer O’Neal noted that



5

East Amwell Township Planning Board Minutes – 3/13/13

no grading will take place on any property other than the one being developed, so the contours on the
Plunkett property and the cemetery won’t change.

Chairman Reilly asked Engineer O’Neal if he saw anything on the site plan that would aggravate any
existing water drainage or runoff. Engineer O’Neal stated that based on the site plans that were submitted,
the proposed application will not have any adverse drainage impact on the surrounding property owners.
It was noted that Mr. Plunkett could come into the municipal building and review the plans or obtain
copies if he wished to seek a second opinion.

Dan Gartling of 15 Boss Road (lot 10.05) came forward again. He asked what the setback would be from
his property line to any potential development. Mr. Sageser commented that the side yard setback appears
to be 30 feet.

A motion by Gail Glashoff, seconded by Linda Lenox to close to the public was unanimously approved.

A motion by Gail Glashoff, seconded by Roger DeLay to approve the Preliminary Major Subdivision
with the following conditions: The applicant will comply with the items outlined in Engineer O’Neal’s
3/4/13 review memo as indicated through testimony, a revised landscape plan will be provided for the
professionals review, the pull off area will be enlarged to 30’ x 75’ and the common driveway area of lots
10.09 and 10.10 will be enlarged to the satisfaction of the Amwell Valley Fire Company in order to
provide for a turn around area in the event of an emergency. The motion was unanimously approved by
roll call vote.
Roll Call Vote: Gail Glashoff: Yes, Roger DeLay: Yes, Fred Gardner: Yes, Rob Gilbert: Yes, Don
Reilly: Yes, Dart Sageser: Yes, David Wang-Iverson: Yes, Linda Lenox: Yes

Open to the Public
Chairman Reilly opened the floor to public comment. Seeing no one come forward, a motion by Linda
Lenox, seconded by Rob Gilbert to close to the public was unanimously approved.

Adjournment
Chairman Reilly adjourned the meeting at 8:46 PM.

________________________________
Maria Andrews, Administrative Officer


